
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 
City Council Workshop & Meeting   

May 1, 2017 
Agenda 

 
                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Manager’s Recommended Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Departmental Presentations 
B. Community Development Block Grant/HOME Program 
C. STAR Program – Michael Malloy  
D. RFP Results on AG Study – Michael Chammings  

 
If Council is unable to finish the workshop agenda by 7:00 PM, the workshop will resume immediately 
following adjournment of the Council meeting.  
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Pross 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in 
one motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so 
requests.  If requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it 
appears on the agenda.   

 
1. Order 34-05012017*  

Appointing City Manager Peter Crichton to the Lewiston Auburn Transit Committee (LATC). 
 
II.          Minutes  

 April 24, 2017 Regular Council Meeting  
 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                                      
V.          Unfinished Business - None 

 
VI.      New Business  
 

1. Order 35-05012017  
Approving the Special Amusement Permit and Liquor License for Mingjing Industrial Group Co. USA 
LLC, DBA, Prospect Hill Golf Course located at 694 South Main Street. Public hearing. 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
2. Order 36-05012017  

Approving the land sale for the 84 Court Restaurant deck expansion. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C). 

 
VII. Reports 
  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. 
 

IX. Executive Session  

 Discussion regarding an labor contract negotiations, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D) 
 
X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real 

property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosure of the 
information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 
E. Contemplated litigation 
F. Discussion of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding 
the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultation between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 
4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to 
that pending enforcement matter.  



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  May 1, 2017     
 
Author:  Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
 

 

Subject:  FY 17-18 Annual CIP – Manager’s Recommendation 
 

Information:  The Manager’s recommended CIP for FY 17- 18 is attached 
 

Advantages:   
 
Disadvantages:  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The amount required to be paid in FY 18 is in the Manager’s Proposed Budget. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Review and presentations only at the workshop. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  

 
Attachments:  
 
City Manager’s recommend CIP for FY 17-18 

 



CITY OF AUBURN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY 17 - 18  Only
Pr

io
rit

y

Description Operating

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Operating Bonds

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Bonding Other

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Other 

AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT
1 Landside Parking Lot 325,000$                   325,000$                         25,000$                25,000$                FY 17 Bond

Taxiway B Reconstructionr (FAA/MDOT 95% eligible) 15,275$                15,275$                FY 17 Bond
Runway Instrument Landing System Relocation (FAA/MDOT 95% eligible) 3,875$                  3,875$                  FY 17 Bond

TOTAL AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT -$                   325,000$                  325,000$                         44,150$                44,150$                

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Economic Development & Planning

1 New Auburn Village Center Revitalization 300,000$                   300,000$                         300,000$              300,000$              TIF
2 Dangerous Building Demolition 200,000$                   75,000$                           
3 Minot Ave/South Goff Street Extension 1,500,000$               125,000$                         
4 AG Economy Study 40,000$                     40,000$                           

Electrical
1 Electrical Vehicle-Replacement 30,000$                
3 Main Street Underground Electrical Replacement 60,000$                     60,000$                           

Street Lights:
8 Upgrade and restore existing to LED and take over ownership of leased lights 881,000$                   81,000$                           
7 Riverwalk fixture upgrade-LED 35,000$                     35,000$                           
6 Mall Area Roadway lighting-LED fixture upgrade 39,000$                     39,000$                           
2 Traffic Signal Upgrades/Replacements:

Minot/Manley 15,000$                     15,000$                           
Turner/Hampshire 20,000$                     20,000$                           

5 Radio Replacement 10,000$        10,000$                
4 Dig Safe Cable locator replacement 10,000$        10,000$                

TOTAL ECONOMIC  AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 20,000$        20,000$               3,090,000$               790,000$                         330,000$              300,000$              

FACILITIES
1 Auburn Hall Chiller 214,000$                   214,000$                         
2 Hasty Fire Kitchen Hood and Suppression System 20,000$                     20,000$                           
3 Public Works Roof Replacement 260,000$                   100,000$                         
4 Engine 5 Tank Removal and Driveway Replacement 110,000$                   
6 Auburn Hall 18,000$        18,000$                
5 Central Fire Driveway Replacement 190,000$                   
8 Public Works Reception Area Renovations and Code Compliance Survey 35,000$                     35,000$                           
7 Central Fire Reception Area Renovations and Code Compliance Survey 45,000$                     45,000$                           
9 Engine 5 Reception Area Renovations and Code Compliance Survey 40,000$                     

TOTAL FACILITIES 18,000$        18,000$               914,000$                  414,000$                         -$                           -$                           

FIRE
Vehicle Replacement-4 Wheel Drive Pick Up 36,000$                36,000$                Unallocated
Ambulance Replacement 360,000$              360,000$              EMS Capital Reserve
Replace expired SCBA  cylinders 10,000$        10,000$                
Engine 5 Generator Replacement 32,000$                     32,000$                           
Engine 2 Generator Replacement 20,000$                20,000$                Unallocated

TOTAL FIRE 10,000$        10,000$               32,000$                     32,000$                           416,000$              416,000$              

INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY
1 Ceiling Netting 19,014$        19,014$                
2 Pitching Machine and Ball Feeder 23,476$        23,476$                

TOTAL INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 42,490$        42,490$               -$                                -$                                      -$                           -$                           



CITY OF AUBURN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY 17 - 18  Only
Pr

io
rit

y

Description Operating

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Operating Bonds

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Bonding Other

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Other 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
1 Upgrade Operating System 200,000$                   200,000$                         
2 GIS Flyover 40,000$                     40,000$                           

TOTAL IT -$                   -$                          240,000$                  240,000$                         -$                           -$                           

LATC (Auburn's share)
1 Bus Replacement 40,000$                40,000$                Unallocated

TOTAL LATC -$                   -$                          -$                                -$                                      40,000$                40,000$                

LA911 (Auburn's share)
1 Virtualization Hardware Refresh 71,500$                71,500$                LA911 Fund Balance
1 Radio Replacement Project 535,000$                   535,000$                         

TOTAL LA911 -$                   -$                          535,000$                  535,000$                         71,500$                71,500$                

NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA
3 Keyless Entry System 26,000$                     26,000$                           
2 Real Ice System-Sustainable Water-Energy Nexus Solution 27,500$                     27,500$                           
1 Heating System for Rink #2 72,000$                72,000$                Unallocated

TOTAL NSB ARENA -$                   -$                          53,500$                     53,500$                           72,000$                72,000$                

POLICE
1 Vehicle Replacement 250,000$                   250,000$                         
2 TASER Purchase 59,000$                59,000$                Unallocated
3 Speed Sign Purchase 33,600$                33,600$                Unallocated

TOTAL POLICE -$                   -$                          250,000$                  250,000$                         92,600$                92,600$                

PUBLIC SERVICES
Engineering

Reconstruction 1,850,000$               800,000$                         
Reclamation/Resurfacing 2,400,000$               1,000,000$                      
Major Drainage 500,000$                   300,000$                         
MDOT Match 750,000$                   500,000$                         
Sidewalks 250,000$                   100,000$                         

Total Engineering -$                   -$                          5,750,000$               2,700,000$                      -$                           -$                           

Parks
14 Utility Vehicle 10,000$                10,000$                Unallocated
13 Riverwalk Fence Replacment 45,000$                45,000$                TIF

Total Parks -$                   -$                          -$                                -$                                      55,000$                55,000$                

Public Works
2 Replace 7 yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 772,000$                   386,000$                         
1 Replace Backhoe (loading materials and snow removal) 140,000$                   

12 Replace Street Sweeper (sand and debris removal from roadways) 225,000$                   
17 95 Ton Hydraulic Press Brakes 48,000$                     
11 Portable Lift System 63,000$                     
15 Purchase Traffic Paint Machine 15,000$                     
8 Replace One Ton Trucks (parks and roadway maintenance) 260,000$                   130,000$                         
3 Replace Pickups (parks and roadway maintenance) 120,000$                   120,000$                         
5 Mini Excavator 76,500$                     

16 Hydro Seeder 23,655$                     
6 Tilt Trailers 11,500$                11,500$                Unallocated

10 Replace tracked excavator (drainage/roadway maintenance) 225,000$                   



CITY OF AUBURN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY 17 - 18  Only
Pr

io
rit

y

Description Operating

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Operating Bonds

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Bonding Other

 Manager's 
Recommended 

Other 

7 Replace multi-use tractor (sidewalk maintenance and mowing) 150,000$                   150,000$                         
4 14' Dump Body Replacement 31,000$                31,000$                Unallocated

18 Replace trailer mounted sign 27,000$                     
Total Public Works -$                   -$                          2,145,155$               786,000$                         42,500$                42,500$                

PW Facilities
9 Storage Facility 500,000$                   

Total PW Facilities -$                   -$                          500,000$                  -$                                      -$                           -$                           

TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICES -$                   -$                          8,395,155$               3,486,000$                      97,500$                97,500$                

RECREATION
2 Baseball Field Phase II 90,000$                     
1 Basketball Backboards 24,000$                24,000$                Unallocated

TOTAL RECREATION -$                   -$                          90,000$                     -$                                      24,000$                24,000$                

EDUCATION (See attached list) 1,250,000$                      

CONTINGENCY 24,500$                           

TOTAL CIP 90,490$        90,490$               13,924,655$             7,400,000$                      1,187,750$          1,157,750$          15,202,895$                 

OTHER:

FY17 Bond 44,150$                
Unallocated 337,100$              
EMA Capital Reserve 360,000$              
LA911 Fund Balance 71,500$                
TIF 345,000$              

1,157,750$          

OPERATING:
General Fund 48,000$                
Ingersoll Turf 42,490$                

90,490$                



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  May 1, 2017    
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot, Community Development Manager 
 
Subject:  Public Hearing - 2017 Annual Action Plan of the Community Development Block Grant Program and 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
 
Information:  The budget discussions occurred at the City Council workshop of March 20, 2017 
Draft Budget (see attached sheets)  
Community Development Block Grant $760,918 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Auburn grant $684,190 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Lewiston grant $ 641,493 
 

 
Advantages:   
 
Disadvantages:  

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Budget supports portions of Code Enforcement, Economic Development Director and 
Deputy Director salaries formerly covered by the general fund 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Discussion 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  March 20, 2017 City Council Workshop,  public hearing held 4/24/2017. 

 
Attachments: Budget Sheets and 2017 Draft Action Plan 

 







 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: May 1, 2017   
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot 
 
Subject:   STAR Program – Required collateral to secure forgivable loans 
 

Information:  Section I.2 of the STAR Program Guidelines identifies the required loan closing documents 
for businesses or property owners who receive funding in the form of a forgivable loan.  In light of prior 
Council concern about the complexity of this loan program, Staff is seeking direction from the council on 
the level of collateral and security that the City wishes to require as a condition of this loan program. There 
are trade-offs. On the one hand, requiring greater security may provide the City with recourse in the event 
of a default. On the other, it adds transactional cost, and may be perceived by borrowers as less 
accommodating. We would like the Council to decide whether these loans are to be secured (which by its 
very nature is less convenient for the borrower), or whether the Council would be satisfied disbursing 
these funds with an unsecured promissory note (making the transaction faster and less expensive to close, 
and more convenient for the borrower, but with higher risk to the City in the event of a default). 
 
Under the STAR Program guidelines, staff is prepared to require the following agreements as part of a loan 
closing: 
If the borrower is a property owner: 

 Promissory note, secured by a mortgage on the borrower’s real property, plus a job creation 
agreement, plus a personal guaranty from the borrower. 

If the borrower is a business owner: 
 Promissory Note, Job Creation Agreement, Security Agreement giving the City a first priority 

security interest on the business’s equipment and inventory, plus a personal guaranty from the 
business owner. 

However, if the Council is concerned that these requirements are too onerous, we would propose the 
following, regardless of whether the borrower is a property owner with real estate: 
 

 Promissory Note (unsecured -no mortgage or personal property filing), plus Job Creation Agreement 

 
Advantages:  The security or collateral requirement will help to protect the City’s CDBG funds  
Disadvantages: None 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Property values from improved buildings may increase tax revenues 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Please advise Staff of the level of security and collateral that the Council 
requests. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: October 6, 2016 – Presentation of STAR Program Guidelines 

 
Attachments:  STAR Program Guidelines approved by City Council October, 2016    



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

1 

 

STOREFRONT TRAFFIC ACCELERATES REVITILIZATION 

(STAR) BUSINESS LOAN PROGRAM 
 

 

 A. PROGRAM OBJECTIVE 
 

 The Storefront Traffic Accelerates Revitalization (STAR) Business Loan   

 Program is designed to encourage the creation or enhancement of business enterprises 

 by providing a source of low interest and forgivable financing for commercial 

property owners, new or expanding businesses, or micro-enterprise business.   The 

program objective is to create new employment opportunities for low- and moderate-

income (LMI) households and to revitalize storefront spaces in the target areas. 

 

 B. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
 

1. Sole proprietorship, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, S-

corporation or non-profit; 

 

2. Commercial property owner of a building with storefront space; 

 

3. New or expanding business owners; 

 

4. Micro-enterprise business owners (5 or fewer employees);  
 

5. Taxes due on property owned by the applicant/owner must be paid in full or 

acceptable arrangements are made with the Treasurer of the City of Auburn; 
 

6. Only one forgivable loan will be made per applicant. 

 

 C. ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 

1. Commercial property and/or business must be located in one of the following 

CDBG target areas: Downtown, New Auburn, and Union Street. 

 

2. Building improvements to include exterior, major building systems, correction of 

code violations, accessibility improvements and retro-fit of business space. 

a. If the project involves construction activity, the administration of the loan 

shall follow the guidelines of the Rehabilitation Loan Program. 

 

3. Purchase of equipment 

 

4. Working capital – (Micro-enterprises only) 

 

 

 

 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

2 

 

 D.  LOAN TERMS  

 

1. Maximum Loan Amount: $50,000; Micro-enterprise loans for working capital 

capped at $10,000; 

 

2. 50% match is required – a reduced match will be considered in exchange for a 

payable loan at an amount equal to the match reduction at the interest rate of 

Prime minus 1/2%; 

 

3. Loan cannot exceed 50% of the total project costs; 

 

4. Loan is a 5 year forgivable loan with interest rate to be Prime minus 1/2%.  

 

5. First year of interest is paid up front, held in escrow and returned at end of year 5; 

 

6. Interest in years 2-5 accrues, but payment is deferred until the end of year 5 at 

which time it is forgiven; 

 

7. At the end of year 3, 25% of loan principal is forgiven, at end of year 4, 50%; at 

end of year 5, 100% of loan principal is forgiven provided business remains active 

(open at least 40 hours per week) in one of the target areas, funds are used as 

described in the application and business submits annual financial reports. 

 

E.        CONDITIONS 

 

1. Funds may be used for fixed assets and business related equipment with 

preference given for infrastructure improvements. In the case of a micro-enterprise 

funds may be used for working capital; 

 

2. The applicant will secure a private cash match or loan assistance from any other 

public agency or private lender who will be responsible for due diligence on 

behalf of the City’s assistance;  

 

3. The applicant must provide a commitment which describes the terms and any 

conditions of the commitment; 

 

4. The business must remain open for business within the target areas in the City of 

Auburn until the loan is forgiven; 

 

5. The business must provide a valid lease, right, title or interest for the space it will 

occupy; 

 

6. The business must have written permission from property owner to make building 

improvements; 

 

7. Creation of one job for loans up to $25,000 and two jobs for loans over $25,000. 

 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

3 

 

8. Property owner will enter into a lease with a business within 3 months of 

completion of rehabilitation of the building. 

 

 

 F.    JOB CREATION CRITERIA   
 

1. For Micro-Enterprise Business: If the applicant’s income is less than 80% of area 

median income the job creation requirement is met.  The owner’s job shall satisfy 

the  requirement for low-moderate income benefit (LMI).  
 

2. Special Economic Development Activity 

 

a. At least one 1 full-time equivalent job will be created within three months after 

rehabilitation of the space is completed for loans up to $25,000 and two jobs 

for loans over $25,000 of Community Development funded loan assistance.   

 

b. During the application process, jobs will be evaluated to determine if there is 

potential to satisfy the 51% low-income job requirement.   

 

c. 51% of any jobs created will be taken by LMI households based on income 

limits established by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development for Lewiston-Auburn SMSA.  Only the initial job will be subject 

to income limitations. 

 

d. Spin-off jobs (jobs that have an indirect link to the project and financing) and 

turn-over jobs (jobs that were previously taken by an employee and are now 

open) are not eligible to be counted to satisfy the jobs requirement.  

 

e.   The applicant will be required to sign a Job Agreement as a condition of the 

loan and must comply with all required reporting.   

 

G.       APPROVAL PROCESS 
 

 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT LOAN COMMITTEE 

 

1.   Loans will be reviewed by the Community Development Loan Committee who 

will be responsible for making a decision to approve or deny loan; 

 

2.   Appeal Procedure:  The reason(s) for rejection shall be given to the applicant. 

Applications that have been denied may be appealed to the Community 

Development Loan Committee for a period of thirty days after the date of rejection. 

The applicant will be allowed to present his/her case to the Community 

Development Loan Committee. The Community Development Loan Committee 

may reconsider a vote denying the application after the appeal review has been 

completed; 

 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

4 

 

3. Waiver of Loan Amount and Term:  The City Manager may authorize a different 

interest rate, repayment term or loan amount than what is specified in this program 

guideline; 

       4. Loan Considerations:  In approving or denying loan requests, the Community 

 Development Loan Committee shall be guided by the following loan considerations: 

  

 a. Underwriting 
  Projects will be analyzed to determine risk according to typical lending  

  considerations.   

 

  1)   Required for All Loans:  

   a)  Cash Flow:  Ability to repay the debt will be the most important 

   consideration with a minimum debt coverage ratio of 1.1. to 1.   

   

   b)  Collateral Coverage- minimum of 100% 
    -   Real Estate: 100% of market value 

    -   Business Equipment: 90% of market value 

    -   Inventory: 60% of market value 

    -   Accounts Receivable: 90% of market value 

    -   Furniture & Fixtures:  80% of market value 

    -   Vehicles:  90% of retail value 

    -   Marketable Securities:  100% of market value  

    -   Personal Assets: (same as above) 

 

c)   Owner Equity:  minimum 10% 

 

d)  Character: Good credit history and reputable, no bankruptcies in 

past 5 years. 

 

 e)   Additional Considerations:  The following shall be evaluated  

        by the Committee before making a decision.  

 Security - Assignment of Leases and Other Assets 

 Commitment to the project is strongly encouraged 

          May include:    Personal guarantees from owners with 

      25% or greater ownership; lease commitments;  

     owner equity or cash  contribution 

 Management experience in running the business 

 Business Plan 

 Market Analysis 

 Experience in development team 

 

  2)     Project is financially appropriate 
         a)  Project costs are reasonable 

         b)  All sources of financing are committed  

         c)  To the extent practicable:  

    CDBG funds not substituted for non-federal financial support 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

5 

 

                    Project is financially feasible 

                   The return on the owner's equity investment is   

     not unreasonably high 

 

  3)    Terms of the Bank Loan - as defined in the commitment letter. 

 

 b.  Assessment of Public Benefit 

 The Community Development Loan Committee will also consider the broader 

implications of public benefits in making a decision to approve or deny the 

loan and will make a necessary and appropriate determination that the amount 

of assistance is reasonable in relation to the public benefit to be achieved.  The 

Community Development Loan Committee will consider the following factors 

in assessing public benefits: 

  

  Number and type of jobs 

   Increase in needed services 

   Increase in tax base including real estate and personal property 

   Development which is likely to be stimulated in the area by the activity 

   Other public benefits 

 

 H.     ADMINISTRATION 

 

  1.    Non-Discrimination 

 

  Administration of this program shall be in accordance with Title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 as amended.  No person shall, on the ground of race, color, 

national origin, sex, age, disability, religion or familial status be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under this 

program. 

 

   2.   Participation by Religious Organizations 

 

        a.    Religious organizations can apply through the STAR Business Loan 

Program with the understanding that funds cannot be used to support inherently 

religious activities such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytizing.   The 

organization can engage in such activities, but the business must be at a different 

location than the place of worship.  Jobs must be open to non-religious members, and 

religious participation by beneficiaries must be voluntary. 

 

  b.    The organization must not discriminate against an employee or 

prospective employee on the basis of religious belief or refusal to participate in a 

religious practice. 

 

3.    Household Income 
      

For the purpose of determining eligibility of a Micro-Enterprise business owner, 

Community Development staff will calculate income by projecting the prevailing rate 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

6 

 

of income of each person at the time assistance is requested.  Estimated annual income 

shall include income from all household members.   Income will be based on Part 5 as 

defined by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

    

4.  Income Limits 
 

To determine income for certain benefits under the STAR Business Loan Program, 

Community Development staff will use income limits for Lewiston-Auburn SMSA, 

established by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and available in 

the Community Development Department.   Revised income limits will be used upon 

receipt. 

        

  5. Loan Processing 

 

Applications shall be processed on a first-come, first-served basis.  Community 

Development Department staff shall use the receipt date of application to establish the 

order of priority.  The applicant will be notified if there is funding available to 

proceed with the project and if there in inadequate funding, then the application may 

be placed on a STAR Business Program Waiting List. 

 

 I. APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

 

1. Business Plan  

 

 The applicant shall submit a business plan that 

 

a. describes the business (type of business, status of the business, the form of 

ownership, the profit potential, employment opportunities, and other 

market/community benefits, location and hours of the business); 

 

b. the market (products/service, customers, market size, competition, estimated 

market share, production and distribution, image/packaging, advertising, and 

pricing); 

 

c. operations/organizational management (management responsibilities, 

professional services, background and experience); 

 

d. financial plan (costs, revenues/chart of accounts, assets, liabilities, cash flow 

projections, balance sheet, equipment list, sources and uses, business pro-forma, 

and 

 

e. supporting documents (personal resume, personal financial statement, job 

descriptions, letters of reference, copies of leases, contracts, etc.), as applicable. 

 

 

 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

7 

 

 

 

 

2. Financial Submission 

 

The applicant(s) shall submit the application form, the last two years of business and/or 

personal tax returns as well as personal financial statements or other documentation from 

an accountant or other acceptable source.  The applicant may be asked to supply a listing 

of personal property and inventory. 

 

       This section sets forth the application procedures for the STAR Business Loan Program. 

 

   1.  Initial Application - Loan application may be obtained from the Economic 

   and Community Development Department;  

 

             2.  Loan Processing - Community Development staff will evaluate eligibility of 

the application.  After approval, Community Development staff will hold a 

loan closing.   

  
  3.  Loan Closing - Loan documents shall include a promissory note, mortgage, 

 security agreements, job agreement, and any other documents necessary to 

secure the terms and conditions of the loan.  Any legal costs incurred by the 

city for the closing documents will be the responsibility of the owner and may 

be paid for with loan proceeds.  

      

4.  Disbursement of Funds - Personal funds will be disbursed first.  Any other 

resources and City funds will then be disbursed on a pro-rata basis.   

Disbursement of funds will require approval of the Economic and Community 

Development Department.  In the case of building improvements the loan 

recipient will also be required to approve disbursements of funds for payment 

to contractors.  

 

5.        Post Closing Counseling – The applicant will agree to meet with the  

 Economic and Community Development Department quarterly during the first 

 two years after the closing, or more frequently, if necessary, to review the  

 financial status of the business. 

 

 J. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 

 

 All loans will comply with applicable Federal Regulations, as amended, of the 

Community  Development  Program as listed below: 

 

  1. Civil Rights - The owner will be required to comply with Title VIII of the 

                          Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, barring discrimination upon the basis of  

   race, color, religion, creed, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin in  

   the sale, lease, rental, use, or occupancy of the property. 

 



STAR PROGRAM - Approved October, 2016 

 

8 

 

  2. Federal Labor Standards Provisions - The owner must abide by established 

   minimum wage rates (Davis-Bacon Act) for the area for construction work 

   exceeding $2,000. 

 

  3. Conflict of Interest - No elected or appointed official or employee of the City  

 of Auburn, and no member of any municipal board or committee which 

exercises any decision-making function with respect to the Community 

Development Program, shall participate in negotiating or shall exercise any 

influence in awarding or administering any contract in which he has a direct or 

indirect pecuniary interest as the term is defined by 20 MRSA Section 2250. 

  

  4.    Prohibition against Payment of Bonus, Commission, or Fee - The owner 

     cannot pay any bonus, commission, or fee for the purpose of obtaining the City 

     of Auburn’s approval of the loan application, or any other approval or  

          concurrence required by the City of Auburn or its designee obtain a loan     

   under these guidelines.   

 

  5. Equal Employment Opportunity - The owner must abide by the provisions of 

   Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375 concerning equal  

             employment opportunity and will not discriminate against any employee or  

             applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, familial  

             status, handicap, or national origin.    

 

  6. Lead-Based Paint Hazards - Any loan made by the City of Auburn for 

 construction work is subject to requirements of the Department of Housing 

and Urban Development's with respect to treating lead-based paint hazards as 

set forth in Title 24 CFR, Part 35.  

 

  7. Flood Hazard Insurance - If the property to be improved is located in a 

 designated flood hazard area, the owner will be required to purchase flood 

hazard insurance or show evidence of coverage, and abide by the regulations 

of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 located in or owned in substantial 

part by persons residing in the area of the project. 

      

           8.      Environmental Review Procedures - All projects shall be subject to  

           environmental review procedures of the National Environmental Protection 
    Act. 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   May 1, 2017       
 
Author:  Doug Greene, Urban Development Specialist, Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Response to Council Directive to Release RFP for AGRP Study  
 

Information:  At the November 7, 2016 City Council meeting, a motion to fund $40,000 towards a study of 
Auburn’s Agricultural District failed to get a second.  Consequently, a motion was made and passed 5-1 to direct 
Staff to release an RFP seeking proposals for the study but not to authorize funding.  The Staff prepared and 
released an RFP and received 2 proposals, one from Small Fish Consultants for ($39,067) and the other from 
Crossroads Resource Center ($50,695).  The Staff is ready to present the proposals to the City Council. 
 The Staff reviewed the 2 proposals and ranked them according to the scoring criteria contained in the RFP.  
Both proposers met the submission requirements of the RFP as well as the scope of work.  Crossroads Resource 
Center was clearly the better proposal.  The scoring was SmallFish – 75 and Crossroads Resource Center – 90.  
The Staff score sheet is attached.   
 Ken Meter and Megan Phillips Goldenberg, the consultants for Crossroads Research Center have assisted 
numerous local food systems in 126 regions in 39 states.  They are currently working in Maine helping the 
Cumberland County/Portland area develop a food hub program.  Just as important, is their understanding of the 
“five-decade success in protecting (Auburn’s) farmland…..We are even more impressed that the City is reaching 
out for additional expertise to assist as it adapts to a new era in agriculture.”  In addition to their very strong 
body of work and deep understanding of the challenges of farming, they also “understand there have been 
concerns in the community regarding bringing in outside consultants for what is often perceived as a local 
matter. ..we find this situation ripe for a neutral party who can accept all viewpoints fairly.” (page 1 of proposal)  

 
Advantages:  Crossroads Research Center has submitted a proposal that will meet the scope and goals of the 
Study to Enhance Auburn’s Agricultural and Resource Sector.  The Agriculture and Resource Protection District 
has tremendous potential to expand agricultural and resource production but needs to be evaluated to fully 
realize that potential.  
Disadvantages:  The timing of the outreach to land owners and farmers needs to better coincide with their 
traditional “down” time in late fall and winter.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The proposal recommended by Staff would require $40,695 in city funding that would 
be supplemented by the Environmental Funder’s Network contribution of $10,000. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends accepting the Crossroad Research Center proposal and funding 
the proposal for a total cost of $50,695. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  The City Council directed Staff to develop a Study of the AGRP District back in 
2015.  The proposed study has been discussed periodically by the Council since then in 2016 and now in 2017. 

 
Attachments: 1.) Council minutes from 11/7/16, 2.) RFP for a “Study to Enhance Auburn’s Agricultural and 
Resource Sector”, 3. ) Proposal from SmallFish, 4.) Proposal from Crossroads Research Center, 5.) Staff scoring  





































  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eric Cousens, Project Lead 
Deputy Director, Economic and Community Development 
60 Court Street 
Auburn, ME  04210 
 
April 14, 2014 
 
Dear Eric:  

Thank you for the opportunity to submit the attached proposal for consulting services for the City of Auburn 

“Study to Support and Enhance Auburn’s Agricultural and Resource Sector” Bid # 2017-027.   As described in the 

RFP, the primary goal of this study is to work with the Auburn community and stakeholders in developing 

credible information that can inform policies, regulations and public investments that support the city’s 

agricultural heritage, protect the natural beauty of its land and promote locally grown food, raising livestock, 

managing forests and natural resource-based businesses.   

Our experience includes:  

● Stakeholder Engagement Processes 
● Focus Groups and Stakeholder Interviews 
● Strategic Planning 
● Survey Research 
● Large and small group facilitation, including public forums 
● Project Design & Management 
● White Papers 

 

The proposed Scope of Work and Services is based on our understanding of your organization’s needs from the 

materials shared during this process. We welcome the opportunity to discuss how we can tailor these to meet 

your unique goals. 

 

For further information, please contact me at (207) 592-4369 or tanya@smallfishcg.com. 

 

Very sincerely, 

 

 

 

Tanya Swain 

Producing results that last and solutions that matter. 

Tanya Swain & Tricia Cook, Principals 

www.smallfishcg.com 
207-592-4369  

207-500-2461 

 



 

 

 

City of Auburn 

Study to Support and Enhance Auburn’s  

Agricultural and Resource Sector 
Bid # 2017-027 

 

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SmallFish Consulting Group 
PO Box 303, Farmington, ME 04938 

Contact:  Tanya Swain  |   (207) 592-4369  |  tanya@smallfishcg.com 

 

April 14, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:tanya@smallfishcg.com


 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Company Profile 

  
2 

Project Team 
 

2 

Experience & Qualifications 

 
3 

Project Statement of Purpose 

 
3 

Scope of Work 

 
4 

Project Timeline 

 
4 

Fee Compensation 

 
8 

References 

 
9 

 
 

 
 

 
             
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

COMPANY PROFILE 

Tanya Swain & Tricia Cook have been colleagues for over 12 years. Together they managed Western 
Mountains Alliance, a nonprofit organization supporting economic and community development 
projects in four counties in western Maine. In 2014, they launched Small Fish Consulting Group, LLC to 
meet the needs of organizations, government agencies and businesses for organizational development 
and project support.  The company’s principals operate primarily from home office space in Farmington 
and Livermore Falls with access to meeting space on an as needed basis at 165 Front Street in 
Farmington. 
 
SmallFish Consulting Group provides organizational development, strategic planning, project 
management and implementation support and its principals have experience conducting participatory 
planning processes, survey research and stakeholder interviews and analysis. While the company has 
worked with organizations ranging from waste management to faith-based groups, its principals have 
extensive experience working with agricultural and natural-resourced based businesses and 
organizations. With two decades shared experience working in numerous communities, the company’s 
principals appreciate from a practitioner’s vantage point that every project and challenge has its own 
unique nuances specific to culture and place.   
 
The company’s business mailing address is PO Box 303, Farmington, ME  04938 and more information 
can be found on the organization at www.smallfishcg.com. 

 

 

PROJECT TEAM 

Tanya Swain has spent over 15 years working in the nonprofit sector and brings extensive experience 
with project design, management and implementation. In addition to her work with SmallFish 
Consulting Group, she currently serves as project director for the Maine Food Strategy, a grassroots food 
systems initiative that recently published the Maine Food Strategy Framework: A Tool for Advancing 
Maine’s Food System.  Tanya’s previous experience includes serving as the executive director of the 
Western Mountains Alliance where she coordinated a regional public forum series, facilitated a county 
agricultural task force and, with colleague, Tricia Cook, developed a program that helped launch some of 
the state’s first virtual markets for farm products.  She resides in Farmington and holds a Masters in 
Public Policy and Management from the University of Southern Maine. 
 
Tricia Cook came to community and economic development through her work in family literacy and 
adult education.  Her experience includes citizen-based economic revitalization efforts, farm work and 
coordination of a mobile farmers’ market (The Good Food Bus). Before launching SmallFish Consulting 
Group, she was a program coordinator at the Western Mountains Alliance where she administered and 
created training materials for Get Fresh Net, a soup to nuts training program that helped groups of 
consumers and farmers build online farm markets and buying clubs and develop related governance 
systems to manage these markets over time. She holds a B.A. in Women Studies and a B.S. in Public 
Administration. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

http://www.smallfishcg.com/


 

3 | P a g e  
 

EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS 

 
● Stakeholder Engagement Processes 
● Focus Groups and Stakeholder Interviews 
● Strategic Planning 
● Survey Research 
● Large and small group facilitation, including public forums 
● Project Design & Management 
● White Papers 

 

PROJECT STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

As described in the Request for Proposals for the Study to Support and Enhance Auburn’s Agricultural 

and Resource Sector, the primary goal of this study is to work with the Auburn community and 

stakeholders in developing credible information that can inform policies, regulations and public 

investments that support the city’s agricultural heritage, protect the natural beauty of its land and 

promote locally grown food, raising livestock, managing forests and natural resource-based businesses.   

As part of Maine’s second largest metro region, the City of Auburn’s Agricultural and Resource 

Protection District is unique in the proportion of Auburn’s land base it dedicates to natural resourced 

based activities. When the district was created, over 105,900 acres were in farmland in Androscoggin 

County and the district’s land base would have conserved a portion of land equal in size to nearly 20 

percent of all farmland in the county. Today, the county has about 56% less land in farms, with the 

average farm size at 128 acres, down from nearly 169 in 1964. Reflecting national trends, the county has 

seen growth in very small and very large farms.  When the AGRP District was formed, Androscoggin 

County reported no farms over 1,000 acres; in the last Ag Census, there were 8. 

For more than a decade, consumer interest in sustainably produced, regional and local foods has been 

growing and presents both opportunities and challenges for communities such as Auburn. We 

understand that the Agricultural & Resource Protection District (AGRP) was created to advance a set of 

objectives: 

o preserving and enhancing the agricultural heritage of Auburn 

o protecting the City’s natural resources and scenic open space  

o maintaining the economic value of the land  

o maintaining the potential for appropriate future development 

 

 

Activities outlined in the proposed Scope of Work below are focused on assisting the City of Auburn in 

answering several key questions related to these values: 

 

1. At this point in time, how well does the Agricultural / Rural District meet its stated objectives? 

2. How has the current zoning affected the growth and viability of agricultural and natural-

resource based operations? 

3. What trends and opportunities are natural resource-based businesses seeing on the horizon? 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

4. Are there changes to policies, regulations or public investment opportunities that could further 

support and enhance farms, agricultural and natural resourced businesses in Auburn? 

 

Our statement of purpose for this study assumes that the City of Auburn remains committed to the 

original objectives of the AGRP. In addition to providing this information, the Scope of Work also 

proposes methods for stakeholder engagement that are designed to produce a transparent and credible 

process that generates broad support for any subsequent decisions that may affect the AGRP or other 

municipal policies. 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Deliverables as listed in the Request for Proposals are: 

1. A database of property owners in the AGRP. 

2. A summary report of property owner interviews which includes identified barriers and 

opportunities for agriculture, food and natural resource business development. 

3. Implementation of a stakeholder engagement process that involves agriculture, food and 

natural resource businesses and stakeholders and public meetings. 

4. A final report with recommendations and an implementation strategy for Council action to 

maximize rural Auburn’s community and economic development potential and to include areas 

where additional analysis / information is needed. 

 

The proposed activities below were designed to produce these deliverables based on our current 

understanding of the City of Auburn’s needs and to provide a framework for how SmallFish Consulting 

Group expects to approach this project.  

 

Proposed Activities 

1. Research to Develop Property Owner Database 

Consultants would work with City staff to determine information to be included in the database and 

preferred software to be used for the project and would be responsible for research related to this 

deliverable. 

 

2. Coordinate Study with Input from Community Advisory Group 

We would recommend that the City consider creating a 9 to 11 member Community Advisory 

Group with representation from the planning board, conservation commission, landowners of 

different scales in the AGRP District, ag-related businesses operating in the ARD or the city at large, 

nonprofit and industry group such as the Androscoggin Chapter of Farm Bureau, and the Good Food 

Council of Lewiston-Auburn.  The role of this group is described in detail in the Proposed Activities 

below. 

 

 

 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Schedule of Meetings – Community Advisory Group 

June/July 2017 Review project timeline and scope of work. 

August 
Participate in public meeting on the study. 

Review & finalize indicators and survey. 

January 2018 

Review survey report and identify next steps. 

Participate in public meeting to present survey findings and provide overview 
of next steps. 

March 
Review input from stakeholder interviews and identify additional research 
needs on alternative zoning options or other information TBD. 

April Review final report. 

May Participate in public meeting to present final report and recommendations 

 

 

3. Develop indicators to assess the current AGRP District and focus research on these areas.  

Indicators are data points or trends that can be used to illuminate movements towards or away 

from a desired outcome. The consultants would work with the Community Advisory Group to 

develop indicators for each AGRP objective. These indicators will reflect information on how well 

the district is accomplishing or supporting the objectives it was created for, and will help illuminate 

areas where changes or revisions to existing policies may provide more effective options for 

advancing the community’s priorities. 

Quantitative Indicators for the AGRP might include: 

 

● Percent change in land in active agriculture or natural resource based business in and out of 

the district over a given period of time; 

● Quality and suitability for farming of soils in the district; 

● Percent change in other special exception uses over a given time period; 

● Percent change in land value; 

● Number of businesses in the district that report expanding production or sales over a given 

time period; 

● Changes in where products produced in the AGRP are sold (retail, wholesale, distributor, 

within Auburn); 

● Percent change in ag support businesses and services in Androscoggin County over a given 

period of time (for example, equipment dealers, seed and soil implement dealers). 

Qualitative indicators might include: 

● How well elements of the current ordinance align with best practices for agricultural 

conservation zoning and other similar zoning in Maine and New England;  

● Businesses that report barriers to growth related to the ordinance, by size, type and years 

in operation. 

 

 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

4. AGRP Landowner Survey: Design & Administration 

The development and administration of the landowner survey would include the following 

components: 

 

a. Input from the Community Advisory Group on survey questions; 

b. Focus on expanding on the data collected by the City’s earlier survey, the recorded public 

meeting, and on information that can inform indicators; 

c. An option for respondents to use either a hard copy paper or online version of the survey; 

d. An option for respondents to participate in a follow up interview. 

 

The online survey would likely be administered using SurveyMonkey or similar software. 

Consultants would be responsible for administering the survey and analyzing results. 

 

5. Stakeholder Interviews  

Stakeholder analysis involves systematically gathering and analyzing qualitative information to 

determine whose interests should be taken into account when developing or evaluating a policy or 

program. Using data from the survey, the consultants would work with the Community Advisory 

Group to develop interview questions that probe information generated in the survey such as 

suggestions for specific changes, or unexpected data.  Community Advisory Group members would 

also assist in identifying key stakeholders. 

 

In addition to providing information on land use and the interests of property owners in the AGRP, 

interviews would be analyzed to look at what positions different types of stakeholders have on 

specific components in the ordinance and the pros and cons of existing policies. Interviewees 

would be selected from survey respondents that expressed interest in an interview and other 

stakeholders identified by the Community Advisory Group based on their expertise or experience in 

areas of interest that emerge from the initial survey results.  

 

6. Public Outreach  

The consultants would work with City of Auburn staff to develop information for the city website 

dedicated to the study.  Information would include the study timeline, meeting dates, information 

on indicators, and may include survey results and other information that develops over the course 

of the project. Additionally, notes from public meetings would be posted on the website and 

depending on the capacity of city staff and the technology, the site might also offer a moderated 

discussion forum. 

 

Schedule of Public Meetings 

August 
2017 

Public meeting to introduce the study and timeline. 

January 
2018 

Public meeting to present survey findings, invite public discussion and provide an 
overview of next steps. 

May 
2018 

Public meeting to present the final draft report and invite public discussion. 



 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

7. Reports 

The consultants will prepare the following reports in conjunction with the study: 

 Survey results, findings and analysis. 

 Summary of input from stakeholder interviews and how this input relates to the survey 

results and/or raises additional questions or information needs. 

 Final report including: 

o Relevant data from survey results and stakeholder interviews; 

o Overview of the study process and methodology; 

o An assessment of the current AGRP based on indicators developed in conjunction with 

an advisory committee; 

o Overall findings and recommendations including information relevant to the findings 

on alternative zoning and ordinance models.  

 

Project Timeline 

June/July 
2017 

Develop Database of Property Owners in the AGRP District 

Work with City staff to clarify process for identifying / inviting participants on 
Community Advisory Group 

Convene Advisory Group to review project timeline and scope of work 

August Develop draft indicators 

Public meeting on the study 

Preliminary Draft of Survey Instrument 

Meeting with Advisory Group and staff to review & finalize indicators and survey 

September – 
October 

Collect secondary data on other indicators to be determined 

Administer Survey 

November – 
December 

Consultants prepare survey results, other indicator data and potential next steps. 

Report forwarded to Advisory Group and staff for review. 

January – 
February 
2018 

Meeting with Advisory Group to review report and identify next steps. 

Public meeting to present survey findings and provide overview of next steps. 

Stakeholders identified for interviews 

Interviews conducted 

March – 
April 

Input from interviews analyzed and presented to Community Advisory Group and 
staff. 

Additional research on alternative zoning options conducted as needed. 

Final report presented to Advisory Group and staff. 

May 2018 Public meeting to present final draft report and recommendations. 

 

 

 

 



 

8 | P a g e  
 

TERMS 

This proposal is our best attempt to address the project goals described in the request for proposals.  

We estimate the project costs to be $39,067 or less.  

 

This estimate is based on a blended hourly rate of $92.64 for approximately 395 hours of work. We 

expect our actual time expended on this project to be within 5% of what we have estimated.  If our 

actual time is more than 5% under this estimate, we will adjust our billing accordingly. Actual costs for 

proposed work will be affected by the following: 

 

● number of properties that need to be included in the database of AGRP district landowners; 

● number of respondents to the survey (anticipated response rate = 50% of approximately 400 

properties) 

● number of stakeholder interviews conducted (estimated # = 25) 

● whether an advisory group is formed for the project and how many individuals participate 

 

If awarded a contract, SmallFish Consulting Group requests payment of 20% total consultant fees paid at 

the start of the contract. Remaining expenses would be billed quarterly with the final payment due upon 

30 days of submission of the project’s final report.  All expenses requests are billed at cost with 

accompanying receipts. 
 

Fees and Expenses 
 

Public Meetings 

 3, 2-hour meetings, prep, notetaking, facilitation and follow up   $ 4,325 

 

Community Advisory Group Meetings 

 4, 2-hour meetings, prep, notetaking, facilitation and follow up   $ 6,825 

 

Property owner database research       $ 1,650 

 

Indicator Development (research and meeting materials for facilitated 

work with Advisory Group)        $   675 

 

Survey Design, Administration and Report      $ 4,400  

 

Stakeholder Research Design, Implementation & Report     $ 7,850 

 

Research on zoning options (may include some interviews)    $ 1,200 

 

Final Report          $ 4,450 

 

General Project Administration (including additional meetings with staff, final 

project process design and work plan, and development of the Advisory Group)  $ 5,175 



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
Total Consulting Fees         $36,550 

 

 
Travel Expenses (8 meetings billed at $50 / hour)     $ 1,000 

 

Materials & Supplies 

 Survey Monkey Subscription (2 months)      $       52 

 Printing 

  survey (400 copies, 15 pp each including)    $     633 

  survey report (20 pp., spiral bound, 50 copies)    $     610 

  stakeholder interview report (for advisory group & staff) (20 pp)  $       35 

Postage (surveys - 400 @ $.465 / letter, first-class metered mail)   $     186   

 
Total Materials & Supplies        $ 1,517 

 

TOTAL PROJECT COST        $39,067 

 

 

References 

 

Deborah Burd, Grants Manager, St. Mary’s Health System, Lewiston, ME 

207.755.3359 / dburd@stmarysmaine.com 

  

Melinda Lando, Pediatric Nurse Practitioner, Bronx-Lebanon Hospital Center, Bronx, NY 

718.579.7337 /  melindalando@msn.com 

 

Rosie Vanadestine, Executive Director, Kennebec Valley Council of Governments, Fairfield, ME 

207.453.4258 x213 / rvanadestine@kvcog.org 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON THIS PROPOSAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

SmallFish Consulting Group LLC,   

PO Box 303, Farmington, ME  04938 

www.smallfishcg.com 

TANYA SWAIN 

Email:       tanya@smallfishcg.com 

Phone:     207.592.4369 

TRICIA COOK 

Email:       tricia@smallfishcg.com 

Phone:     207.500.2461 

http://www.smallfishcg.com/




















































 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  May 1, 2017  Order:  34-05012017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Appointing City Manager Peter Crichton to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee (LATC) 
 
Information:  Passage of this order would be to confirm the appointment of City Manager, Peter Crichton, to the 
Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee, a seat previously held by former Assistant City Manager Denis D’Auteuil.  

 
Advantages:  It fills this Auburn seat and provides representation of the viewpoints of the city. 
 
Disadvantages: None.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  
Memo 
Order 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

 Office of the City Manager 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 
 

  
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

TO:   LATC 

FROM:  Auburn City Council  

RE:   Crichton Appointment  

DATE:  May 1, 2017 

 

 

 

To Whom It May Concern:  

 

We, the City Council have invited Peter Crichton, Auburn City Manager to serve in place 

of our previous Assistant City Manager, Denis D’Auteuil on the Lewiston-Auburn Transit 

Committee (LATC) for a term to begin upon acceptance of this invitation.  

 

As an appointed Representative Member of LATC, Peter has been asked to represent the 

viewpoints of our city and to develop recommendations for LATC’s consideration. 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 34-05012017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby confirms the appointment of City Manager, Peter 
Crichton, to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee (LATC) with a term expiration of 
01/01/2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  May 1, 2017   Order: 35-05012017 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

 

Subject:  Special Amusement Permit and Liquor License requests for Mingjing Industrial Group Co. USA LLC, 
DBA, Prospect Hill Golf Course 
 

Information:  Mingjing Industrial Group Co. USA LLC, DBA, Prospect Hill Golf Course, an existing business with 
new ownership, located at 694 South Main Street, applied for a Special Amusement Permit. Police, Fire, and 
Code have completed the necessary inspections and have granted approval. 

 
Advantages:  Helps to promote Auburn as a business friendly community and nice place to visit. May attract 
additional patrons; both local and out of town. 
 
Disadvantages: The potential for disorderly conduct. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Public hearing and recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  

 Applications 

 Public Notice 

 Order  
 































CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held by the Auburn City Council on Monday, May 

1, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in the Council 

Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider the Special 

Amusement Permit and Liquor License Applications for: 

 

Mingjing Industrial Group Co. USA LLC, DBA,  

Prospect Hill Golf Course  

694 South Main Street, Auburn, Maine 

 

All interested persons may appear and will be given the opportunity to be 

heard before final action is taken. 

 

  

 

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Vacant, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 35-05012017 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Special Amusement Permit and Liquor 

License for Mingjing Industrial Group Co. USA LLC, DBA, Prospect Hill Golf Course located 

at 694 South Main Street, Auburn, Maine. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 Confidential 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Executive Session Date:  5-1-17  Order:  36-05012017     
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  84 Court Street  - Offer to purchase portion of abutting lot 
 

Information:  84 Court Street Pizza and Restaurante serves “Greek and Italian food in the Heart of Auburn.”  
They have made substantial investments in their building and patio at the rear of their lot and offer a great 
option for downtown dining.  They are hoping to expand their patio and would like to acquire some land from 
the abutting City owned parcel.  Initially they offered to purchase a 36’ x 40 parcel to keep the shape simple 
but really don’t need the full 36’ depth.  Staff notified the other abutter and he was concerned with a retaining 
wall being too close to his property line and requested that we ensure that any new retaining wall would be 10 
feet or more from the line.  We discussed this with Suli Real Estate LLC and they are open to adjusting the 
dimensions to 26 x 40 and can still make their patio expansion work and accommodate the abutters request.  
The land in question is a steep slope, much like the area where their existing patio is constructed.  The land 
has little value to the City or anyone else but could help them expand their outdoor seating area.  The 
retaining walls and patio construction will require substantial investment and would likely increase their 
property value by $6,000-$12,000 as a rough estimate.  The retained City lot would still be a buildable lot and 
conforming parcel that can continue as a parking lot or could still be developed in the future.  The land is 
located in the T5.2 Downtown City Center zoning district and expansion of the business is consistent with City 
Comprehensive Plan goals and ordinances.   

 
 

Advantages:  Allow a downtown business to grow and continue provide a quality downtown dining option.  
The sale provides a small but immediate revenue for land that has very little value to the City or anyone else 
and expands the City tax base slightly.   
 
Disadvantages: None known. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: 2,000 revenue for land and transfer a small piece of land from tax exempt to taxable 
status.  

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Staff recommends accommodating the request.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
Attachments:  Map, background documents and correspondence, image of existing patio and image of sloped 
land to be transferred.   



Basemap depicting general area and 26 x 40 (1040 square feet)  parcel to be transferred 

 















Image of existing Patio at 84 Court Street Pizza and Restaurante 

 



Proposed purchase of sloped area to expand patio – Approximate area in red box 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 36-05012017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the sale of the 
26x40 foot parcel described on the attached map for the price of $2,000.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   May 1, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding labor contract negotiations, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (D). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 5-1-2017
	1a  Info Sheet - manager's recommended CIP for FY 17-18
	1a1  FY18 CIP Request 042017
	FY18 mgr recommended

	1b  Info Sheet  2017 Action Plan Public Hearing
	1b1  FFY2017 Proposed CDBG-HOME Budget
	1c  5 1 17 CCW STAR Program collateral2
	1c1  STAR Business Loan Program Guidelines rev 4
	1d  Info Sheet RFP on AG Study
	1d1  CC Minutes Nov 7 2016
	1d2  AGRP RFP FINAL w attach    3-15-17.docx
	1d3  SFCGProposalCityofAuburn4.14.17
	1d4  Crossroads Proposal 2017
	1d5  AGRP Proposal Scoring
	2  Info Sheet - LATC Appt Peter Crichton
	2a  LATC - Crichton Appointment 5 1 17
	2b  Order 34-05012017 LATC Appt. Peter Crichton
	3  Minutes 4-24-2017
	4  Info Sheet Prospect Hill Golf Course
	4a  LIQUOR LICENSE APP-MINGJING
	4b  SPECIAL AMUSEMENT-MINGJING
	4c  Special Amusement-Liquor License Hearing Ad - Prospect Hill Golf Course 2017
	4d  Order 35-05012017  Prospect Hill Golf Course Order
	5  Info Sheet - 84 Court
	5a  84 Court Supporting onfo Binder
	1 Basemap
	2 84 Court Street Background docs
	3 Image of Existing patio
	4 Image of land to be purchased

	5b  Order 36-05012017 84 Court
	6  Executive Session labor contract negotiations

